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TRACKS INTO OTTAWA: THE CONSTRUCTION
OF RAILWAYS INTO CANADA'’S CAPITAL*

by C. C. J. Bond

Bytown in 1851 numbered 7,760 souls. The days of squared timber were
going and the Bytown mills were already sending a few million board feet of sawn
lumber each year to the United States via water along the Ottawa-Richelieu route
and the Rideau Canal. American and Canadian enterpreneurs were investigating
new mill sites and the government of the Province of Canada would shortly build
works that would make the hydraulic power of the Chaudiere Falls available to
them.” A few years earlier, in 1848, there had been a meeting in Bytown to discuss
the building of a railroad southward to Prescott, that would join with the Ogdens-
burg Boston line and serve to carry sawn lumber to the U.S.A.* A charter was
granted to the “Bytown and Prescott Railway” on May 10, 1850.

The famous Canadian railway engineer Walter Shanly was employed to survey
the line. His report to the president and directors was published in the Citizens on
April 7, 1851. Shanly set forth four possible routes — he had walked over each of
them, a total of over two hundred miles — and recommended, because some of
these crossed the Rideau River a number of times, that the one east of the Rideau
via Kemptville was the best. There was some difficulty in determining where the sta-
tion should be located in Bytown. Because of the river cliffs and the great fluctuation
of the water level, it was impossible to get the line low enough down by the river
to discharge cargo. The canal basin in the centre of the town was a good location,
but the elevation left from the Ottawa River was over 80 feet. Shanly proposed a
station on the north-easterly outskirts of Bytown just west of the Rideau near the
bank of the Ottawa. His printed report, issued a few months later, pointed out other
reasons for the location of the station near the Rideau Falls. By now the 52-mile
route east of the Rideau had been decided upon. To reach the canal-basin would
have required a long and costly embankment from the bridge across the Rideau to
the canal near the present-day University of Ottawa. In addition, he considered
that appearance was another factor against such a railway, which would pass east
of the canal along what is known as the Deep Cut. Shanly reasoned:

Through this cut trains would skulk into the Town, to reach a Terminus which
would, inevitably, be soon built around on all sides, giving it a confined and hampered
appearance and limiting the prospect to an occasional view of the Basin, when it did not
happen to be obscured from sight by the presence of a number of diminutive craft.

On the other hand, he recommended the approach
through fine open country, where trains would show to advantage — reaching their

* This paper was read before the Annual Conference of the Ontario Historical Society at
Picton, Ontario, June 17th, 1965.
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destination on o fair and level plane, fronting on and in full view of the noble Otlawa —
# view which can never be obstrucied, and the effect of which upon the stranger visiting
Bytown would be 1o create n lively and enduring impression of the beauty of it situation,”

However, the fact that John McKinnon, the railway president, was the son-in-law
of Thomas MacKay, the great entreprencur of New Edinburgh, near Rideau Falls,
and builder of Rideau Hall, (his mills at the falls were making ¢loth, flour and
lumber,) may well have had some bearing in the location of the station, Shanly
designed bridges for the crossing of the Nation and Rideau River; the former was
a fine-looking wooden truss,’ but plans of the latter have not been found.

A meeting was held at the Bytown Market Hall on September 28, 1851, with
McKinnon in the chair and Robert Bell as secretary, It was decided that a com-
mittee headed by McKinnon would petition the municipality of Bytown for
£15,000.

Work on the railway seems to have languished during 1852; little was done.
There was a meeting in Kemptville on May 17 at which McKinnon was re-elected
as President,” The Grand Trunk offered to aid the Bytown and Prescott if the latter
would adopt the Grand Trunk's gauge. But McKinnon preferred to keep his pro-
posed standard gauge, 4' 814", and to connect with Boston; in March, 1853, a
meeting was held in the Revere Hotel in that city, at which $100,000 was sought.”
In early July McKinnon arrived home from England, where is was reported that
he had disposed of £ 55,000 worth of stock in exchange for the steel needed, Mr.
Bell, said the newspaper story, arranged for the purchase of 8 locomotives and 131
cars in Boston,

But more money was needed, In Bytown on August 31 the municipal electors
met at the Market Hall to vote on the question as to whether or not the Town
would lend the railway £50,000, the money to be borrowed upon the credit of
the Consolidated Municipal Loan Fund of Upper Canada. The opponents of the
loan demanded a poll. At sunset, after 443 votes, the ayes were far ahead. The
polls opened at 10 a,m. the next day and closed at 1:45 p.m. for lack of voters.
The result was 460 in favor, 147 against, Bell, McKinnon, Mayor I, B, Turgeon
and others made speeches and there was a prand procession from one end of the
town to the other.”

In mid-September some of the steel had arrived, It was not until June 21,
1854 that a passenger train ran over any part of the railway. The inaugural journey
must have been a dry one, The Prescott Division of the Sons of Temperance
“engaged passages by the Cars to attend the Temperance Celebration at Spencer-
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ville.” The “Cars" left the station below the fort at 9:30 a.m." This train was prob-
ubly pulled by n work locomotive, The Ottawa papers reported in mid-July that
“two splendid locomotives,” the “St. Lawrence” and the “Ottawa™ had been brought
across the river, with some gravel cars, Ogdensburg, opposite Prescott, was northern
terminus of railways in New York State, The locomotives were probably brought
over the river in barges. A few days later the Citizen carried a story that a large
iron steamboat was being built in Philadelphia to travel between Ogdensburg and
Prescott, This rail ferry was to curry five cars on each track.™

Until this time the traveller had to traverse the 120 miles between the growing
lumber city and Montreal by boat when the waterways were open or by stage when
the road-bumps had been somewhat smoothed by snow, Kirby, Pattee, Beauchamp
and Hillman ran a line of covered stages cvery Monday, Wednesday and Friday in
winter. The night staging point was Hawkesbury; between this town and Montreal
a four-horse team pulled the vehicle.”

The Transportation Revolution was now about to oceur in Bytown; the stage-
coach was poing to be put out of business, On the morning of August 9 the steam-
ship Beaver puffed out of the canal basin en route for Kemptville, weighted down
with Bytownian men eager for a new experience. All enjoyed a splendid spread in
Kemptville and were sighing with repletion when suddenly the ding dong of an
engine bell was heard. Chairs scraped back and all rushed to the train. After
examining the hissing monster, the erowd, for most of whom this was a brand new
experience, got aboard and soon:

Pish, Pish, nnd in n few seconds the unmusical gallop of the Iron Horse convinced

g . . . thal we eould not make up a small sum of twenty in simple addition by counting

the cedar posts which flanked the rond on either side . . . the ocenslonal scream of the

steam whistle showed, a8 some errant cow or horse obiruded on the track, that Railrond

Cars were likewise new o quadruped ns well ns biped, [the former] with heads down

nnd tails erect scampered in terrorenm out of harms way and looked 1o all the world as

if they meant to ask, “where the devil do you come from?” . . . At Prescoit many of us
for the first time slackened our thirsty souls with the water of the 51. Lawrence, impraved
mightily as some declared with Gillman's Brandy.
This appears to have been far from the drab affair that the Prescott Sons of
Temperance had conducted earlier in Spencerville, The Beaver reached the Bytown
turning-basin only at 3 a.m. the next day."”

This burst of enthusinsm was dampened as the snows of winter began to fall,
The management ran out of money and steel three or four miles short of Bytown.
The energetic Robert Bell had hardwood rails capped with hoop-iron laid and the
first train finally skulked into New Edinburgh just across the Rideau from the site
of the Bytown station on December 25, 1854, Next spring the bridge over the
Rideau was completed and the trains could enter Bytown,"
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On January 1, 1855, Bytown signalized the completion of this important
transportation link by becoming a city and changing its name. Other railways in the
area were abuilding. The Grand Trunk Montreal-Toronto ling was completed on
October 27, 1856. Another ambitious project, the Montreal and Bytown Railway
had been started; only the middle portion was built, a portage railway between
Grenville and Carillon, bypassing the rapids on the Ottawa at that point. This little
line was completed in October 1854."

Immediately after the arrival of the first train, the Bytown and Prescott (which
was not renamed the Ottawa and Prescott until some time after April 1855) ad-
vertised regular service to Prescott, with connections vin Ogdensburg to Montreal,
(It was a threc-hour journcy, from 6 a.m., to Prescott; passengers arrived in Mon-
treal the same evening).” McKinnon must have felt earlier that he had a certain
winner in his railway, for he had bought from Thomas MacKay early in 1854 land
on the ¢liffs above the Ottawa just north of his station, and here he erected shortly
afterward the magnificent stone residence that Sir John A. Macdonald, when he
lived there, named Earnscliffe, It is now the residence of the British High Com-
missioner."

MecKinnon and Bell must have had a difficult time financially. There were no
funds; the traflic was poor. Bell gave "promissory notes in great numbers for sums
of five dollars and upwards, which became a sort of paper currency in the distriet,
and were bought and sold at various shades of discount. . . . In time the traffic on
the P. & B, [D. & P.] line improved and all the notes were redecmed at par.”™
However, the general financial picture remained poor, The Welsh Ebbw Vale Iron
Co. had a first mortgage against the rails and there was another to the City of
Ottawa for the 1853 loan. A receiver was named about 1861, Finally in 1865 the
railway was put up for sale and bought by Thomas Reynolds, the agent of the Ebbw
Vale Company. The Ottawa & Prescott became the St, Lawrence & Ottawa Rail-
way Company, organized on December 21, 1867."

Meanwhile Ottawa had become the capital of the Province of Canada; the
civil serviee and government officials moved up from Quebec in October and
November, 1865, many coming by the Ottawa and Prescott.” Railway travel was
full of hazard and adventure in those days. Edmond Allen Meredith, at that time
Assistant Provincial Secretary for Upper Canada, en route 1o Ottawa from Toronto
by the Grand Trunk in June, after the move, tells in his diary how just west of
Kingston station his car went astray, The rotten ties had broken, the rails had
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spread and his car went off the track, bumping over the rondbed. The coupling
chains broke, but fortunately the car came to a stop without overturning.”

On July 1 Confederation of the four provinees was celebrated on Parlinment
Hill in the capital. It was now more important than ever that good railway com-
munications be estimated linking Ottawa to the main centres of the new Dominion.
The mills about the Chaudiére in 1868 cut a hundred million feet of lumber for the
American market, much of which went out on barges, However, winter shipments
had to go by rail. The St. Lawrence & Ottawa depot at the Rideau Falls was badly
situated to haul lumber from the Chaudiére. Thomas Reynolds, who bought Earns-
cliffe in 1868, acquired a controlling interest in the newly organized Ottawa Horse-
car Company, with the idea of using its rail at night to haul cars of lumber from the
Chaudiére to his depot. Construction of this line had started in 1867, but the first
cars did not run until 1870, and by then the impractical idea had been given up,
possibly because of the appearance of a competitor in a much stronger position.
Reynolds sold the street railway to Thomas Keefer in 18717

In 1853 a charter had been granted to the Brockville and Ottawa Railway
Company, to build a railway from Brockville to the Ottawa River; this line had
been constructed as far as Carleton Place in 1859, In 1864 the Brockville and
Ottawa, which did not reach either the Ottawa River or Ottawa, was bankrupt, The
Canada Central Railway which had received a charter in 1861 replacing an earlier
ambitious Lake Huron, Ottawn and Quebec Junction Railway Co., acquired entire
control of the Brockville and Ottawa. By 1866 Mr, Richardson, the Canadian agent
of the English interests that controlled the Canada Central, had extended the
B, & O. to Sand Point, a few miles north-west of Arnprior on the Ottawn,”

On February 16, 1870, there was held a great Railway Convention in Ottawa
to discuss the extension of direct rallway communication from Montreal westward
via the Ottawn valley, Mayors Rochester of Ottawa and Workman of Montreal,
Members of Parliament, of the Legislative Assemblies, as well as lumbermen and
the railwaymen were present. The old military argument that lay behind the con-
struction of the Rideau Canal was once more set forth: there were no communica-
tions between Montreal, ehief city of the Dominion, and Ottawa its capital “which
could not be interrupted by batteries planted on foreign soil.” Then there was the
need to stimulate settlement in the valley, and haul away lumber. The Canada Cen-
tral Railway had commenced building a line from Carleton Place to Ottawa in 1868,
Now it was proposed to join forces with the Northern Colonization Railway that
awned the old Montreal and Bytown's fifteen miles between Grenville and Carillon,
to link Ottawa with Montreal, “We would form the best route for a Canadian

23, E. A. Meredith, Diary, in possession of Lt Col, C, P, Meredith,
Onawa: June 5, 1866,

24, Hughson & Bond, Hurling Down the Pine, p. 37, Reddaway, Norman, op. eft, p. 12,
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Pacific Railway” exclaimed the enthusiastic Richardson. But meantime, there was
the Canada Central to construct first,”

The Times headed a story on September 16, 1870:

THE INTEROCEANIC CHAIN: FORGING THE FIRST LINK

A large crowd gathered at 9 a.m. on the 15th at the terminus of the C.C.R. on
LeBreton Flats near the Chaudigre. Here waited a train of eight cars behind a
powerful locomotive named after the contractor, H. A. Abbott. It was decorated
with coniferous boughs, union jacks and red, white and blue flags. The train pro-
ceeded through green woods for awhile, then passed the blackened forest and
fields of the “burnt district,” ruined in the great fire of August 17. At Carleton
Place all disembarked and got aboard the Brockville train for Sand Point. Here
beside the Ottawa there was little but a wharl and a large freight shed. But for
today there were a triumphal arch, flags, and banners reading “Welcome™ and
“Success to English Capitalists,”

The lunch menu was so complete that it must be cited in detail,

For Reléves there were!
Boned turkeys with apple jelly, game paté, ornamented hams, rounds of beef,
smoked beef tongue,

The Entrees:
Chicken salad, partridges with jelly, oyster patés.

Roasted meats:
Roast beef, turkey, mutton, chicken, goose, veal,

Game:
Partridge, wild duck, prairie chickens, plover,
Relishes:
Olives, pickled oysters, pickled cucumbers,
Pasiry:
JTelly tarts, fancy cakes, wine jelly, blanc mange, charlottz russe, charlotte of
apples,
Fruit:

Isabella grapes, oranges, fameuse apples, almonds, raisin, figs, etc., crackers,
mixed nuts, celery,

The band of the Brockville Garrison Artillery played during lunch, then the
speeches started, Sir Francis Hincks, Minister of Finance, apologized for the
absence of Sir John A, Macdonald, who was on his way back from convalescence
in P.EL The Hon. I, J. C .Abbot answered the toast of D. Bearup, the president

26, Times, Otawn: Feb. 17, 1870,
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of the railway. He saw this Ottawn-Sand Point line as a first leg of n trans-
continental railroad. The party broke up at 3:40 p.m. and all arrived in Ottawa at
6 p.m.”

This year the St. Lawrence and Ottawa was offering two trains a day to
Prescott. Business was picking up. In May, 1871 the largest train of cars cver to
run on the line was pulled by the locomotive “Lady Lisgar.” Three passenger cars
carried 68 people, besides the usual baggage and post office cars and 30 grain
cars, each with 350 bushels of wheat, The next day 17 cars of lumber left for
Boston. They were to be ferried over the St. Lawrence; there was to be no trans-
shipment,”

Thomas Reynolds was not geing to let the C.C.R. get away with its privileged
position at the Chaudiére, He started a line from five miles south of Ottawa, over
the Rideau River and Canal, west of Dow’s Lake to the Chaudiére, where a depat
was built. On December 10 the first locomotive ran over this line, its whistle
screaming at the crossings, making “an unearthly row,” according to the inhabitants
of Rochesterville.® In mid-1875 the St. Lawrence and Ottawa took a big step when
decision was taken to burn coal henceforth in 2ome of the locomotives, Pullman
cars were operated while Parliament was sitting.”

From 1874 to 1877 construction of a rail line in the province of Quebec
between Montreal and Hull was under way, First called the Northern Colonization
Railway, it soon became the Quebec, Montreal, Ottawa and Occident. Its first
train steamed into Hull on December 3, 1877, Soon the tracks were being extended
to Aylmer.” In the summer of 1879 luxurious palace curs were placed in service on
the Q.M.0, & O, Railway [or the convenience of Members of Parlinment, Senators
and others.” In 1880 a tailway bridge was constructed across the Ottawa — the
first upstream from the Grand Trunk bridge near Montreal — a long truss structure
built in a shallow area of the river above the Chaudiére, The locomotive “St.-Jean
Baptiste,” followed by the “Champlain” and the “Joliette,” crossed the bridge to
test it on December 3.% Now three railways entered the capital.

John Rudolphus Booth, a Canadian from Waterloo, Que, who got his start in
Bytown in the early 1850's, was one of the most important sawmill owners in the
capital twenty-five vears later.” In 1879, with the American William G. Perley,
(another Ottawa lumberman) and a businessman from 5t, Albans, Vt., he formed
the Canada Atlantic Railway. The C.AR. was incorporated in mid-1879, making
use of a charter granted in 1871 that permitted the construction of a railway from

27, Times, Ouawa: Sepl. 13, 1870,
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Ottawa to Coteau, Quebec, near the St. Lawrence, The City of Ottawa promised
£100,000 toward the construction. The next year another charter was secured for
the extension of this line from Coteau to the head of Lake Champlain, where a
connection with American rnilways was possible.™ Construction was started narth-
westward in 1880 from the Coteau end. The work neared Ottawa in 1882; south
of the city limits the line approached the Rideau Canal through Wildwood, the
couniry estate of the barrister Robert Lees. A swing bridge over the canal was
tested by the pragmatic Booth with a number of railway cars loaded with stone.
The depot was built just west of Elgin Street and a roundhouse was constructed
north of the track and just west of the canal. The area to the north became a large
piling ground for lumber that was brought up from the Chaudiére mills by barge
and unloaded at a great dock a thousand feet long on the west side of the Rideau
Canal. The first truin on the new line stenmed into Ottawa on September 13 and
regular service was soon started to connect with the Grand Trunk at Coteau. Soon
a spur carried the line to the 5t. Lawrence at Cotenu Landing and a car ferry ran
to Clark Island on the other side. In 1884 the southerly extension from Clark Island
to Lacolle, Quebec, was opened.”

While Booth was thus getting access by il to the capital and a means to ship
his own lumber, a giant corporation appeared on the raillway scene in the capital,
On February 15, 1881, an Act approving the contract for the construction of the
Canadian Pacific Railway was passed. The Canada Central Railway, which had
been extended as far as Mattawa, becume part of the new transcontinental railway.”
The Quebec, Montreal, Ottawa and Oceident Railway was acquired by the C.P.R.
on May 17, 1882, The St. Lawrence and Ottawn became part of the C.P.R. on
September 26, 1884." Booth's timely action just managed to prevent the Canadian
Pacific Railway from having a stranglehold on rail transportation into Ottawa,

The two companies settled down to orderly competition, The Canada
Atlantic was successful from the start. Booth, although aging, was still dynamic
and continued to make money. In 1888 the southerly end of the Canada Atlantic
line was extended south from Lacolle to the international boundary east of Rouse’s
Point, secking a link on the other side. (It was not until 1895 that it became possible
to connect with the Central Vermont.) In 1888 he obtained two railway charters,
one for the Ottawa, Arnprior and Renfrew, to extend west from the capital up the
Ottawa, and one for the Ottawa and Parry Sound, which was to run from Renfrew
to Scotia on the Grand Trunk line running north from Toronto to Callander. In
1890 the car ferry over the St. Lawrence was replaced by a bridge,”
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John Booth put a magnificent train on the road in 1891. The first class
coaches, 63 feet long overall, were framed of B.C. fir and southern pine. The
interiors were finished in Canadian cherry. “Every inch of woodwork is polished
and varnished to show the natural beauty of the material,” said the advertisement.
There was an entirely new feature, separate smoking rooms, secluded from the
passenger section by means of a corridor which nllowed free movement from one
end of the car to the other without disturbing the smoking room. There were wash-
rooms at each end of the car, The wheels were by Krupp and the brakes by Westing-
house. The second-class car was the same on the exterior; the interior was fitted in
Canadian birch,”

While the Ottawa, Arnprior and Parry Sound Railway was being built across
the southern edge of the city, much of it on an embankment, Booth negotiated with
the ¢ity of Ottawa for lands and a grant that would permit him to construct a new
depot at the very centre of Ottawa, near the point where Rideau and Wellington
Streets each erossed the canal on its own bridge. In 1892 the city agreed to give
$150,000. to be paid in instalments as work was completed, Booth was to erect
his Central Union Depot within three years, and to construct a railway to Parry
Sound in six years. His railway was to be independent, especially of the C.P.R,,
for 40 years. It was not to amalgamate with the C.P.R. or any compuny controlled
by the C.P.R.; all monies paid would be forfeited if it did,"

The Deputy Minister of Railways and Canals authorized the apening of traffic
on the Ottawa, Arnprior and Parry Sound on September 13, 1893, The tracks
were extended another 93 miles by September, 1894, On December 3, 1895 the
city congratulated John Booth on the completion of the Central Station. This
structure was little more than a series of covered platforms terminating at an old
stone building, once Dufresne & McGarity's wholesale grocery warchouse, which
had been acquired by Booth, The Government of Canada had bought the building
and changed it into quarters for Miltlia Stores: the upper floor remained the military
storehouse when the railroad took the building over, *

Booth's railway toward Lake Huron was completed to Scotia Junction on
December 1, 1896. He had acquired another short railway that earried his line on
to Depot Harbour. Now the Canada Atlantic extended from the American border
at Lake Champlain to Georgian Bay. Within three years the line was handling a
million tons of freight a year."

Another line, the Montreal and Atlantic Railway Co., was completed between
Ottawa and Montrenl on July 17, 1898, on the south shore, It was immediately
acquired by the C.P.R. and became known as the “short line.” On the 29tk the
Ottawa and New York Railway Company completed another line that extended to

4. Crawa Free Press, June 20, 1891,
41, Minutes, City of Ottawa, Oct. 31, 1892,

42, Minutes, City af Onawa, 1893, Appx.. copy of letter. A. W, Fleck
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Cornwall, Ontario, and Tupper Lake, New York. The station for the latter waos
built about a mile south-gast of the Central Depot, as Booth would not permit the
use of his station.”

On the Quebec side, the Pontiac and Pacific Junction Railway had bought
the tracks running from Hull to Aylmer and exiended them to Portage du Fort in
1802, Another line, the Ottawa & Gatineau Railway, begun in 1883, was extended
up the Gatineau River, It reached Kazabazua in 1893 and was built to Maniwaki
in 1903. These two joined to form n company which, with the aid of municipal
and other grants, built the Royal Alexandra Bridge between Ottawn and Hull in o
deep section of the Ottawa. It was opened on February 22, 1901, Trains from Hull
could now run te Booth's Central Depot.”

Baoth would not build a proper depot at the Chaudiére on Broad Street, but
the C.N.R. did, This was quite a pretentious structure in the Chiiteau style made
popular in 1893 in the great C.P.R. hotel in Quebec.” In the 1920% it was

abandoned, and finally demolished,

Booth's abstreperousness about the use of his depot by other railways, and
the state of the central depot for which he had been paid a large bonus, nettled
City Councll. The eity solicitor was asked in 1902 to apply to the Privy Council
for an order to compel the C.A.R. to build a central station. The matter was taken
to the Minister of Justice the next year.”

Booth sidestepped the issue. In 1903, soon after it was announced that the
National Transcontinental Railway would be built, the Canada Atlantic was
offered for sale, The Canadian Pacific Railway did not try to buy Booth's railway;
it will be remembered that the City of Ottawa had a sharply anti-C.P.R. clause
in its agreement to pay Booth a grant in 1892, There ensued a struggle, in which
the rising Canadian Northern and the New York Central (whose subsidiary the
Ottawn & New York Railway Company had a line to the capital) appeared as
contenders, On September 29, 1904, it was announced that the Grand Trunk had
bought the Canada Atlantic, The City of Ottawa kept on pressing in the matter of
the central depot, writing the new owner to enquire when it would be built.”

At last, in 1907, the Grand Trunk gave notice to the city that it was applying
for incorporation of the “Otlawa Terminal Railway Company.” The railway’s
Gieneral Manager, Charles Melville Hays, asked for a fixed assessment for twenty
years on the station and a hotel that were to be built, costing in the order of
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$2,500,000. The great American architect Bradford Lee Gilbert was retained. Sir
Wilfrid Laurier approved the plans, which called for the erection of Gothie struc-
tures, the station by the canal, nnd a hotel in Major's Hill Park, Ordnance lands
belonging to the Crown. The Grand Trunk was deeply involved and railway con-
struction in Canada's west and the financial panic of 1907 struck in a sore blow.
Hays, who was virtually the dictator of Grand Trunk policy, instructed his architect
to cut down the plans so as to save a million dollars, omitting entire storeys. When
the plans were submitted to City Council on February 14, 1908, the changes were
nated. The Chiel Engineer of the Railway explained that the architect had “exceed-
ed his instructions.” Gilbert, who was present, leaped to his feet to protest. His
services were immediately dispensed with and a Montreal firm was retained. In a
very short time they produced a new set of plans, which bore a very suspicious re-
semblance to those of Gilbert, However, the exterior designs of the buildings were
altered, the hotel to a French chateau and the station to a neo-classical structure.
They were duly opened in the early summer of 1912, but Hays was not present.
He had died a short while carlier in the sinking of the Titanic.* The Grand Trunk
service to Ottawa was merely a branch line from its main Montreal-Toronto line,
The railway's transcontinental line passed far to the north of the capital. -

In 1917 the recently built transcontinental lines were in difficulty. That year
Parliament authorized the taking over of the Canndian Northern by the Govern-
ment of Canada, and in late 1918 the Canadian Government Railways was set up
to manage this and other railways, The name was shortly afterward changed to
the Canadian National Railways, The Government of Canada nequired ownership
of the Grand Trunk Railway in May 1920, and a few years later it too became part
of the Canadian National Railways."

Now a process of subtraction of railways from the Ottawa scene began. The
first to go was the Canadian Northern's Ottawa-Hawkesbury line. (Some of jts right
of way east of the capital has become the Trans-Canada Highway). The depot on
Hurdman Road became a coal-yard, The New York Central, which in 1915 had
acquired the Ottawa and New York Railway, nbandoned its line to Cornwall and
tore up the tracks in 1957,

Under the administration of Sir Robert Borden a Federal Plan Commission
was established to prepare a plan for the development of Ottawa and Hull, One of
the aspects to be considered was “convenient arrangements for traffic and transpor-
tation. ., " In November 1913, the Commission set up an office in Ottawa; a Re-
port was issued in 1915. The Report recognized the interference caused to the
Ottawa street system by the multitudinous railways of Ottawa and Hull and recom-
mended a rationalization involving the abandonment of many lines, the building of
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a tunnel, etc.” The war and the advent of the automobile vehicle, which revolution-
ized traffic patterns, caused the Report of the Federal Plan Commission to be
shelved forever,

In 1922 a Canadian city planner, Noulan Cauchen, prepared an unofficial
plan for the capital, In it he proposed several revolutionary steps:

{a) The creation of a rail belt-line bypassing Ottawa.

(b) Marshalling yards to be concentrated along this line south of the Walkley

Rond.

{¢) Lifting of the tracks and creation of a rapid transit highway across the

city on their alignments.™

In 1950, n National Capital Planning Committee, in a report made after a long
period of study under the direction of the French town-planner Jacques Giréber,
once more recommended changes to the railway system, changes that embodied
much that Noulan Cauchon had proposed.”

Work began in 1950 on the carrying out of some of the Gréber proposals,
Five and a half miles of main line tracks were laid, bypassing the city on the south.
In November 1953 through freight trains began to bypass the city by this route. By
August 1955 the CNR transfered its freight marshalling and car repair to the
Walkley Road area. In 1960 the cross-town tracks, the former C.A.R., were
abandoned, nnd work began on the building of a four and six lane rapid transit
road, the Queensway, broken at present at the Rideau Canal and east, in the area
of the main line tracks.” This was another Cauchon proposal.

The Gréber proposal that all rail crossings of the Ottawa River be transferred
to & new bridge that would be built six miles east of the capital, crossing Duck
Island, was found to be not economically feasible. The old St. Lawrence & Ottawa
line to the Chaudiére and the 1880 rail bridge to Hull were retained.” Work began
in 1964 in putting this line in a tunne]l under the canal at Dow's Lake and into
a cutting from there northwards toward the Ottawa, so that the line could be easily
bridged for street crossings, New dynamiting techniques were used in blasting the
excavation through the limestone, resulting in a very neat cutting, almost as though
chiselled.

The final step in the rationalization of Ottawa’s railways under the Gréber
proposals will occur when the 1912 G.T.R. Union Depot in the city's heart is
demolished, the tracks along the canal lified, and a new station by Hurdman
Bridge, designed by John B. Parkin Associates of Toronto, take over its function,

The C.N.R. trains will no longer have to back into the station, the C.P.R.
trains no longer approach or leave via Hull. Some Ottawans are sorry [o see the
1912 Union Depot go. It was really just one aspeet of an almost anarchic free
enterprise development. The planners have at last taken over and a new éra is
dawning,
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OVER THE EDITORS DESKS

Correction of text: “Tracks into Ottawa: The construction of railways into
Canada’s capital,” Ontario History, Vol. LVII, No. 3, September 1965, On page
132 line 13, for “C.N.R.” read “C.P.R.” On page 133, after line 18 add paragraph:

These were the mad days of new transcontinental railways, Sir Donald Mann and
Sir William Mackenzie brought the main line of their Canadian Norihern Railway right
through Ottawa. On November 30, 1909, the Ouawa-Hawkesbury line connecting with
a line that ran to Montreal was completed. A new bridge north of Hurdman's Bridge
brought the tracks over the Rideau 1o yel another terminus in the south-east part of
the city. In 1911 The Canadian Northern's line west from the capital was started.
Muckenzie and Mann announced plans 1o build a town, Rideau Junction, near their
southerly crossing of the Rideau, that would be the main car shops of their railways.
But somehow this project was deferred, and eventually disearded. Shortage of material
for bridging the Ottawa upsiream delayed the opening of the C.M.'s transcontinental
line west of the capital until 1916, Meanwhile, another line was built, from Toronto
to Ottawa vin Napanee. The last section of this was completed on December 30, 1913.*

The Editors regret that these revisions of the text, that were supplied in good time
by the author, were not made in the final printing.



